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Questions and Answers 
 

IP/B/CULT/IC/2014-002 

Internationalisation of Higher Education 
 

 

Questions: 

 

1.  The tender states (Annex 1, p 4) that a minimum of 6 European and 3 

International Countries are to be looked at. Please can you confirm that you do 

NOT expect the Lead organisation to partner with each of these countries and 

that they are only to be researched? 

 

2.  Would providing honoraria for potential collaborators count towards to 50% 

sub-contracting element of the proposal? 

 

3. In the draft service contract, Article II.9 states that the IP rights will vest 

exclusively with the European Parliament, which may be assigned as they see 

fit. Would you be able to indicate whether a license or rights to use the IP for 

teaching and research purposes to the successful tenderer is likely to be 

acceptable to the European Parliament? 

 

 

Answers:  

 

1. Tenderers are not necessarily required to partner with the countries they are 

expected to research in more detail. 

 

2. The European Parliament defines a subcontractor as a third party, whether or 

not linked to a candidate, tenderer or contractor, who takes on part of the 

performance of the contract but under the sole responsibility of the contractor.  

The third party does not have an employment contract with the operator who 

signs the contract with the European Parliament, and, therefore, cannot be 

considered to be part of the contractor’s staff. A subcontractor will therefore be 

an independent expert, a freelancer or simply a company signing a services or 

supplies contract with an economic operator that has signed a contract with 

the European Parliament. 

 

3. The Intellectual Propriety rights for the drafted study will belong to the 

European Parliament. However, the policy of the European Parliament is that: 

the use of (written) expertise for non-commercial purposes is authorized, 

provided the source is acknowledged and the European Parliament is given 

prior notice. 



 

Question: 

 

1. About the Annex II – c. 12.1, the tenderer is required to sum up “a list of 

services provided in the past three years which are relevant to the subject of 

this study”. 

Is it meant a list of services provided, with at least one service about higher 

education, or a list of services provided in research on education at 

international and local level (VET, continuous learning, EDA, etc.) even if 

there is not in the last 3 years a specific service on higher education? 

 

 

Answer:  

 

1. Specific services provided in the last three years in the field of higher 

education would be an asset, but any services in the wider field of education 

will be taken into consideration, too, and should therefore be indicated. 

 

 

Question: 

 

With reference to the call of tender IP/B/CULT/IC/2014-002 for the realization of 

a research study on Internationalisation of Higher Education, we would like to 

kindly ask you information regarding the points below related to the documents 

the Tenderers would have to submit: 

  

- Section A.5 Sub-contractors: the documentation sub-contractors have to 

provide at point SUB. 2 would be accepted only in form of originals or scanned 

copies would be accepted either? 

- Section A.3 Exclusion Criteria: the documents listed from EC.1 to EC.4 that 

would have to be provided by the Lead tenderer (our Institution legal status is 

Public Law Body) and the Join Tenderers can be presented in form of a self-

certification written and signed by the Authorized Representative of each 

Tenderers or by a notary statement written and signed for each of the Tenders or 

only the documents listed from EC.1 to EC.4 in form of originals or certified 

copies would be accepted. 

Moreover, does the Declaration on the Tenders’s Honour Concerning Exclusion 

Criteria and Absence of Interest signed by the Authorized Person for each Tenders 

(Lead and Join) substitute the submission of documents from EC.1 to EC.4 or 

these documents would have to be submitted along with the Declaration on the 

Tenders’s Honour Concerning Exclusion Criteria and Absence of Interest? 

 

 

Answer: 

 

- As regards A.5.2.: original documents are required regarding  "Documentation 

of their [subcontractors] willingness to accept the task and their acceptance of 

the terms and conditions set out in the invitation to tender and in the annexes 

thereto." 

It can be a signed declaration, a memorandum of understanding or any other 

document that attests the willingness of the subcontractor to perform the tasks if 

the contract is won. 

- As regards exclusion criteria: all the members of the consortium should provide 

"a recent extract from the judicial record or, failing that, a recent equivalent 

document issued by a judicial or administrative authority in the country of origin 

or provenance showing that those requirements are satisfied." Where no such 

certificate is issued in the country concerned, it may be replaced by a sworn or, 

failing that, a solemn statement made by the interested party before a judicial or 



 

administrative authority, a notary or a qualified professional body in his country 

of origin or provenance. 

The signature of the Declaration on the Tenders’s Honour does not substitute the 

required documents. 

All the members of the consortium need to fill in the Tender form (Annex III). 

Only the Lead tenderer provides the name of the Project manager, the 

representative duly authorised to sign on behalf of the consortium (if that person 

is entitled to) and his bank account (points 1.8 to 1.10 from the tender form). 

According to Article 3.7. of the Annex II of the Open Invitation to Tender: "In the 

case of a consortium of economic operators, each member shall furnish proof of 

the right of access to the contract (eligibility), as well as proof of compliance with 

exclusion and selection criteria. With regard to selection criteria, the European 

Parliament will take into account the capacities of all members of the consortium 

in order to establish whether it will have the resources needed to perform the 

contract." 

 

 

Questions: 

 

1. Are annexes to the tender allowed e.g. are literature references included in 

the tender allowed to go into an Annex or must the references be contained 

within the page limits set in Annex III of the tender documents? 

2. You request a full CV – please could you define what this means i.e. a typical 

academic CV of more than 10 pages or more along the lines of a standard 2 

page CV? 

 

 

Answers: 

 

1. As a general rule, tenderers are asked to stick to the page limits set out in 

Annex III of the tender documents. However, if necessary additional 

information (such as literature references) may – exceptionally – be put into 

an annex as well.  

2. Given the character of the work to be performed, a more detailed "academic" 

CV would be deemed useful. 

 

 

Question: 

 

The Terms of Reference (Annex I) indicates that the contractor shall make a 

balanced and well justified suggestion of no less than six European countries for a 

deeper analysis […] and that at least three non-European countries shall be 

included into the examination […]. Is this to be interpreted in the strict sense that 

only countries can be suggested – or may we suggest geographical regions or 

clusters of countries, if this is a relevant unit of analysis? 

 

 

Answer: 

 

You may indeed want to suggest geographical regions or clusters of countries, if 

this proves a relevant unit of analysis for you – provided only that the overall 

objective of having sufficient geographical diversity (this including also non-

European objects of research) is kept in mind.   

 

 

 

 



 

Question: 

 

In addition, we would like to sumbit another question to your attention for 

clarification. With reference of point A3. EC. 1 – the Chamber of Commerce of 

Milan (CCIAA) issued the hereby attached Certificate of Good Standing. 

Considering what stated, could this document respond to what requested into EC. 

1 requirements with specific reference to bakrupt, not being would up etc.? 

 

 

Answer: 

 

Unfortunately we are unable to tell you at this stage of the tender procedure 

whether a specific document responds to the requirements, which is exclusively 

up to the Evaluation Committee to decide. 

 

We can clarify, however, that any document with legal value, as described in the 

annexes, is admissible. 

 

 

Question: 

 

I am working with a Professor at this University to complete the above mentioned 

tender document. 

 

However, although this organisation has secured and manages a significant 

number of EU funded programmes and tenders we have, to date, not had to 

produce the evidence you are requesting re. the Exclusion Criteria at point A3 

(EC.1-EC.4)  

 

The evidence you have requested is as follows: "a recent extract from the judicial 

record or, failing that, a recent equivalent document issued by a judicial or 

administrative authority in the country of origin or provenance showing that those 

requirements are satisfied." Where no such certificate is issued in the country 

concerned, it may be replaced by a sworn or, failing that, a solemn statement 

made by the interested party before a judicial or administrative authority, a 

notary or a qualified professional body in his country of origin or provenance.  

 

The signature of the Declaration on the Tenders’s Honour does not substitute the 

required documents. 

 

Normally, as we are classed as Public Body we would supply a signed Declaration 

of Honour along with the other documents i.e. Financial and Legal ID etc. 

 

Therefore, I would be grateful if you could elaborate on the above statement – for 

example would it be sufficient for a solicitor outside of the University i.e. a 

Commissioner for Oaths to sign a document to this effect or is there some other 

evidence that you require. 

 

Answer: 

 

We can clarify that, as stated in point A.3. of Annex III (Tender Form), if the 

document is from a qualified professional body in your country of origin, it can be 

accepted as evidence regarding the exclusion criteria 

 

Note: This answer is made public on the European Parliament’s website 

http://www.europarl.europa.eu/tenders/invitations.htm, on which the documents 

making up the invitation to tender are published. 

http://www.europarl.europa.eu/tenders/invitations.htm

